
PO Box 348 • Sunrise Beach, MO 65079 • PH (573)374-8782 • www.sunrisebeachmo.gov 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Monday, August 12, 2024 

Regular Board Meeting – 5:00 P.M. 
Sunrise Beach City Hall, 16537 N Highway 5 

This meeting is open to the public.  

This meeting is planned to be livestreamed at the Sunrise Beach Youtube page: 
https://www.youtube.com/@VillageofSunriseBeachMissouri 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order (Pledge of Allegiance)
2. Roll Call
3. Approval of the agenda
4. Approval of the minutes from the July 8, 2024 regular meeting
5. Approval of the minutes from the July 22, 2024 closed sessions meeting
6. Approval of the minutes from the August 7, 2024 special meeting (Public Hearing, CDBG)
7. Presentations
8. Chairman of the Board report
9. Visitor Comments
10. Ordinances and Resolutions

a. Bill No. 2024-18 An Ordinance of the Village of Sunrise Beach, Re-Adopting Ordinance 
No. 10-10 and Providing Fair Housing for the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri; 
Defining Discriminatory Housing Practices and Creating a Fair Housing Committee
(first and second reading)

b. Resolution 2024-16 A Resolution of the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri Stating Its 
Intent to Seek Funding through the Community Development Block Grant Program 
and Authorizing the Board Chairman and City Manager to Pursue Activities in an 
Attempt to Secure Funding (FY 23)

c. Resolution 2024-17 A Resolution of the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri Stating Its 
Intent to Seek Funding through the Community Development Block Grant Program 
and Authorizing the Board Chairman and City Manager to Pursue Activities in an 
Attempt to Secure Funding (FY 24)

d. Resolution 2024-18 A Resolution of the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri Adopting a 
Conflict of Interest Policy Relating to the Award or Administration of Contracts 
Supported by Federal Grant Funds

e. Resolution 2024-19 A Resolution Establishing the Rules and Regulations Regarding the 
Use of Excessive Force During Non-Violent Civil Rights Demonstrations Including 
Physically Barring Access to a Facility of Location which is the Subject of Such 
Demonstration, and Providing Penalties for Violations Thereof

http://www.sunrisebeachmo.gov/


f. Resolution 2024-20 A Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the Board of Trustees to
Enter into an Agreement with Cochran Engineering for Professional Services Relating
to the Beachwood Drive Improvement Project, to be Funded in Part Through
Community Development Block Grant Funds

g. Resolution 2024-21 A Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the Board of Trustees to
Enter into an Agreement with Cochran Engineering for Professional Services Relating
to the Eddie Avenue and American Legion Drive Improvement Project, to be Funded in
Part Through Community Development Block Grant Funds

h. Resolution 2024-22 A Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the Board of Trustees to
Enter Into an Annexation Agreement with Crabco, LLC dba Rough Water Docks

11. Old Business
a. Bill No. 2024-17 An Ordinance of the Village of Sunrise Beach for Improving and

Beautifying the City by Requiring Property Owners to Maintain the Right-of-Way
Abutting Their Properties. (Second reading)

12. City Administrator report
a. Budget report

13. Chief of Police report
14. Committee reports

a. Finance
i. Approve the List of Bills

ii. Approve Phase III Sewer Project Pay Application 11; Brulez Trenching LLC,
$272,191.48; and Shoreline Surveying & Engineering, $39,747

iii. Approve Change Order 4, Rough Water Docks Sewer extension, $25,380
iv. Approve Pay Application 2, Water service extension, Summer Point and CoMo

Connect, $76,212.95
v. Approve Change Order 3 CoMo Connect, Summer Point and Rough Water

Dock Water extension, $26,880
vi. Approve Change Order 2, Higgins Asphalt, 2024 Paving Project, (Singing Oaks

to Castle Garden Rd) $43,886.50
15. Adjourn

The Board of Trustees will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such others as may be 
presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for discussion at that time. Individuals who 
require an accommodation to attend a meeting should contact City Hall (573-374-8782) at least twenty-four 
hours in advance. 

Posted:  ___________________________ 
Date and time 

By: ___________________________ 
Erin Hays, City Clerk 



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

MONDAY JULY 8, 2024 

Regular Board Meeting-5:00p.m. 

Call to Order: 5:00 

Roll Call  

Steve Barthol  Present  

Greg Gordon  Present  

Michael George Present  

Steve Carter  Present   

Susan Schneider Present   

Attendance, Steve Roth City Manager, Nathan Nickolaus Attorney, Chief Craig, Officer North, Katie 
Aholt Navigate Representative, and Melvin Chittom visitor.  

Motion to approve agenda given by Steve Carter, second Steve Barthol, All in favor. Approved 

Motion to approve the Meeting Minutes from June 10, 2024, regular meeting by Steve Barthol, 
second Michael George, All in favor. Approved 

Presentations. 

Municipal Building Planning: Katie Aholt, Navigate Building Solutions went over a Navigate 
Pamphlet outlining the details between constructing a new City Hall on current location and the 
Oak Star location.  Board of Trustees comment and all agree to further discuss at a Public Hearing 
on whether to proceed with Oak Star.  

Chairman of the Board Report:  Chairman of the Board Susan Schneider read her greeting, thanked 
Katie Aholt for her presentation, mentioned more annexations coming, happy about the Newsletter 
getting out in a timely manner, and put a request out for a donation of land for park/recreation use. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Chairman Schneider opened visitor comments: No visitor comments made 

BILL NO. 2024-17 AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH FOR IMPROVING AND 
BEAUTIFYING THE CITY BY REQUIRING PROPERTY OWNERS TO MAINTAIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY 
ABUTTING THEIR PROPERTIES (first reading) 

Motion to Read Bill 2024-17 (by title only) by Steve Carter, second Steve Barthol, all in favor  
Approved. 

Old Business: No old business to discuss. 

City Administrator Report: Steve Roth went over the Budget Report and Sales Tax Table. 

Municipal Building project next steps: Setting a Closed Session for an offering to Oak Star 

Budget Report 

Chief of Police Report 

Committee Reports 

Finance 

Approve the List of Bills give Steve Barthol, second Michael George, all in favor. Approved 

Motion to Adjourn given by Steve Carter, second Steve Barthol, all in favor. Approved 

Adjourned at 6:12 p.m. 

 

 

 

_____________________________  _______________________________________________ 

City Clerk, Erin Hays    Chairman of the Board of Trustees, Susan Schneider 
   

 

 

 

 

 



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

PUBLIC HEARING 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 7, 2024 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES- 5:00 P.M. 

SUNRISE BEACH FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT TRAINING CENTER 

30 PORTER MILL SPRING ROAD 

SUNRISE BEACH, MO 65079 

Call to Order at 5:00p.m. by Susan Schneider, Chairman of the Board of Trustees 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call by Erin Hays, City Clerk 

Chairman of the Board of Trustee: Susan Schneider Present 

Board of Trustee: Steve Barthol Present 

Board of Trustee: Steve Carter Present 

Board of Trustee: Greg Gordon Present 

Board of Trustee: Michael George Present 

Additional attendance included Cochran Representatives Dave Christiansen and Sally 
Barnett Bothmann, Steve Roth City Manager, Chief Craig, Erin Hays City Clerk, and visitors 
Melvin Chittom and Rodney Delp. 

Motion to approve the agenda given by Steve Carter, seconded by Michael George, all in 
favor. Approved. 

Cochran Representative Dave Christiansen presented a power point presentation on the 
CDBG Grant process including the proposals for FY23 and FY24. FY23 proposal would 
improve and resurface Beachwood Drive to Highway 5. FY24 proposal to improve and 
resurface Eddie Avenue to Highway 5, and American Legion Drive to Highway 5. These 
improvements for each project will include pavement repair, drainage, and roadway 



resurfacing. If approved the projects would tentatively be scheduled for the calendar year 
of 2025.  

The Board of Trustees and additional attendees discussed and provided the information for 
the Needs Assessment Document. The top five priorities of the City of Sunrise Beach needs 
were discussed and agreed upon during the verbal assessment: 1. Road improvements 2. 
Water and Sewer. 3. City Facilities. 4. Housing. 5. Employee training / Job Creation. Dave 
Christiansen listed the steps and documents that will be needed to proceed for the grant 
applications. These documents are set to be voted on at the next scheduled Board of 
Trustees Meeting on August 12, 2024, at 5:00p.m.  

Visitor comments included a question from Rodney Delp about who determines the 
Low/Moderate Income (LMI) percentage. Dave answered that it is HUD that provides this 
assessment. Melvin Chittom inquired how many grants can be awarded each year, the 
answer is one per year.  

Chairman Susan Schneider asked for any further questions or comments. No further 
comments or questions. 

Motion to adjourn was given at 5:44p.m. by Steve Carter, seconded by Steve Barthol, all in 
favor.  

Adjourned at 5:45p.m. 

 

 

 

_________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Chairman of the Board of Trustees   City Clerk of Sunrise Beach 

Susan Schneider      Erin Hays 

 

 

       (seal)  

 



1 
 

 
 

Village of Sunrise Beach, MO PO Box 348 • Sunrise Beach, Missouri 65079 • PH (573)374-8782 • www.sunrisebeachmo.gov 
 
August 8, 2024 
 
TO:    Chairman Schneider and the Board of Trustees  
RE:     City Manager report, August 12 meeting 
 
Hello everyone, 
 
Please note the following with respect to the August 12 meeting: 
 

1. Bill 2024-18, Fair Housing and Resolutions 2024-16-17-18-19. All these items are related to the 
proposed CDBG applications. The Fair Housing ordinance actually was first adopted by the Board in 
2010, and was required as part of a CDBG application at that time. The ordinance proposed here 
simply re-adopts existing Ordinance 10-10, which should satisfy the CDBG requirements. 
Resolutions 2024-16 and 2024-17 both give approval to applications for the two CDBG projects 
(Beachwood and Eddie Avenue-American Legion Drive). These Resolutions also are in the form 
required by CDBG. Resolution 2024-18 adopts a Conflict of Interest policy relating specifically to 
state grants, while 2024-19 deals with Excessive Force. There are other certifications required as 
part of the grant application which we can handle administratively; the items presented here are 
the ones that require specific Board approval.  
 
General info. Some of this information was covered in the public hearing, but just in brief review: 
The CDBG program is funded through the US Department of Housing and Urban Development and 
is administered at the state level by the Department of Economic Development. We are proposing 
to apply under the General Infrastructure category, which includes any publicly owned 
infrastructure. Projects must benefit at least 51 percent low-moderate income persons, and our 
community in total has 76.8 percent low-moderate income, so we certainly qualify. There are two 
grant cycles currently open: FY 23 and FY 24, and both have approximately $23 million in state 
funding to be awarded. The maximum award is $500,000, so there’s a maximum of 46 projects in 
each cycle the state could award.  While the grants are very competitive, we do feel we have an 
excellent chance at being awarded.  Each road was identified for improvement in the recent 
Preventive Pavement Maintenance Plan, and the engineer (Cochran) has a strong track record in 
delivering projects through the program. One thing that we will need, if awarded, is a grant 
administrator who administers the grant itself (and not the construction project). This could be 
handled through the Lake Ozark Council of Local Governments, or through another qualified 
administrator. We have budgeted $25,000 for this expense in the overall project budget, with the 
administrator to be selected if we are actually awarded. CDBG grants are fairly complex with a lot 
of administrative requirements, and while I have a lot of familiarity with the program I am not 
qualified to be the actual grant administrator. We are not sure the exact timeframe for state 
selection and award, but feel the project(s) hopefully would be ready for construction in spring-
summer 2025, if awarded. As was discussed at the Public Hearing, this could be delayed however 
into 2026. 
 
In summary we do feel the CDBG program is an excellent opportunity for our community, and we 

http://www.sunrisebeachmo.gov/


2 
 

feel there may be other opportunities down the road as well. As I have noted in other reports, our 
road improvement program is not dependent on the state grants, and will continue if we are not 
selected. However if we do get funding it would enable us to cross some major routes off our list 
and would greatly accelerate the program in general. We would respectfully request Board 
approval of the applications and the required supporting documentation. 
 

2. Resolutions 2024-20 and 21, CDBG project engineering. These Resolutions approve agreements 
with SC Engineering, dba Cochran, for professional services relating to the two proposed grant 
applications. We are proposing to pay these costs directly as part of our grant match, and not seek 
reimbursement through the grant for these services. Cochran has been selected for their expertise 
with these types of projects, including a similar project in Camdenton. Of course Cochran also 
developed our Preventive Pavement Maintenance Program, and these projects are an outgrowth of 
that plan. The fees in each contract are spelled out in the Resolutions and include $5,000 for grant 
application assistance. In the event the grant is not awarded, the City would have no further 
obligation.  
 

3. Resolution 2024-22, Water and Sewer extension, Rough Water Docks. This Resolution gives 
approval to an annexation agreement with Crabco LLC, dba Rough Water Docks, which would 
provide for extension of water and sewer services to their location on N. Highway 5. The 
agreement is in a similar form to the one used for CoMo electric. The sewer costs would be paid 
through Phase III grant / loan funds, while the water costs would be paid through capital 
improvements. I view this item similarly to the CoMo deal, in that it essentially brings a new 
business to town in exchange for water and sewer connections. Rough Water Docks is a strong and 
well-established local business and we would be happy to bring them into the City limits. From an 
economic development perspective, water and sewer is the biggest incentive we can offer, and this 
agreement IMO represents an excellent use of that incentive.   
 

4. Bill 2024-17, Right-of-way maintenance. This bill was given a first reading July 8 and is scheduled 
for a second and final reading here. I have not heard any public comments on the bill since was it 
first read. The bill was drafted by the City Attorney and sets regulations for maintenance of public 
rights-of-way within the City. The provisions in the bill in my opinion are routine and common in 
other municipalities. As noted in the July Board report, we would only intend to enforce the 
provisions in the event of a hazard, nuisance or similar issue affecting public health or safety. The 
City Attorney can speak to the fine points of the bill at the meeting if desired.  

  
5. Budget report. I want to give the Board a brief budget update with a review of capital project 

spending in particular. Revenues continue to be very strong, with the August 1-cent sales tax 
payment at $87,051, up about 10 percent over last year. Calendar Year 24 receipts are now at 
$308,521 compared to $246,109 over the same period last year, an increase of 25 percent. As 
discussed in previous reports, some of this increase is due to late payments from certain vendors, 
but in general our receipts continue to be very strong and at this point I would expect year-end 
receipts to be at least 10 percent over last year. Sales taxes of course are our primary source of 
funds, but other revenues have also been generally strong. We have added approximately 115 new 
sewer connections as part of the Phase III project, and we are seeing a boost in revenues from the 
new customers. Water and Sewer in general however remains my biggest concern and we will need 
to review in much greater detail during budget prep this fall.  
 
Capital project spending is my other primary concern. Assuming Board approval of the paving 
project change orders, the total project cost will be $740,000, which is an increase over the original 
$600,000 budgeted amount. The difference will be covered through reserves and better-than-



3 
 

expected sales tax receipts. We’re also spending Capital Improvements funds on the recent water 
extensions (Summer Point, CoMo and Rough Water). Total capital spending between all projects is 
now budgeted at approximately $1.17 million in this fiscal year. This is a big number but is 
manageable through use of existing reserves, including ARPA. We have approximately $1.8 million 
in reserves currently, which I would estimate to be spent down to approximately $1 million once 
we are through the Phase III Water-Sewer projects and the Asphalt Paving project. Both Capital 
Improvements and Transportation reserves will build back over the fall and winter, so we should 
head into next construction season with adequate reserves to fund the next round of 
improvements. (The CDBG projects, if awarded, would of course provide a major funding boost.) 
Regardless we do need to develop a long-range capital improvements plan, which will be a point of 
discussion in the upcoming fiscal year budget. 
 
In summary the City finances do appear to be quite strong, with adequate reserves to fund much-
needed improvements. Our ability to fund major capital projects going forward will depend in part 
upon grants, as well as continued sales tax growth. A bright spot in my opinion has been the 
General Fund, which has been steadily growing in recent months despite recent staff additions. 
Gen Fund was at $285,704 as of July 31, compared to $186,652 in March. I would also note that the 
sales tax impact of the recent Franky & Louie’s and Paradise annexations won’t be felt until next 
year, as sales taxes on those locations don’t go into place until Oct.1. So in general I feel our 
financial picture is very positive and we would of course hope for this to continue. 
 

6. Water and Sewer, Asphalt Paving change orders. We have several pay applications and change 
orders on the agenda for Board approval. Each should be self-explanatory when reading the 
attached documentation. I would note that each one of the project change orders has been 
initiated by the City, and essentially has been extra work added at our option. With the water and 
sewer projects, the sewer work has all been covered through the existing Phase III contract; the 
water work has been additional at the City’s option and is being paid through Capital 
Improvements reserves. The revised contract amount ($678,933) for the 2024 Paving project would 
be paid as follows: $350,000 Transportation; $217,683 Capital Improvements, $111,250 ARPA. If 
there are any questions about the individual change orders please feel free to contact me. 
 

7. Information items / updates.  
a. Asphalt overlay project. We held the pre-construction conference for this project on July 

29, and upon discussion we intend to follow the contractor recommendation and begin the 
project on Tuesday, Sept. 3 (day after Labor Day). The contractor expects the job to take 
about three weeks in total, so in good weather it could possibly be done before the end of 
September. More likely it seems the project will run into early October. We will provide 
updated notices to the Board and general public as they are received.  

b. Phase III water-sewer. This project is nearing completion, and at some point we may want 
to have the engineer present a project recap / overview. We have added approximately 
115 sewer customers, including the Summer Point residents. We have spent much of the 
past several weeks “dialing” in the new systems, which include three lift stations off 
Beachwood Drive and nearby locations.  It has been a learning experience for our Public 
Works crews and the City staff in general, and I would give Public Works great credit for 
how they are managing the system and responding to issues. I would also give the 
contractor (Brulez) and project manager (Shoreline / Alpha) credit for their work on the 
project. Providing sewer service to the developed Lake area is not an easy task, and in my 
opinion all parties involved have done an excellent job of it. Of course there have been 
issues but in general I feel these have been readily addressed. Finally I would also want to 
give credit to the office staff for onboarding the new customers and in general providing 



4 
 

excellent customer service. We are not perfect but I do feel the project has been very 
successful and I would want to recognize all those who have worked on it.  

c. Lead Service Line Inventory. We have more than 100 questionnaires returned, with a few 
days left before the deadline. This is an excellent response and will help greatly with our 
effort to meet the October deadline to complete this.  

 
If you have any questions or want to discuss any of these items further, please don’t hesitate to reach out 
to me. 
 
Thank you, 

  
Steve Roth 
City Manager 
 





1 
 

BILL NO.   2024-18  

ORD NO.  _______________  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH, RE-ADOPTING 
ORDINANCE NO. 10-10 AND PROVIDING FAIR HOUSINNG FOR THE VILLAGE OF 
SUNRISE BEACH MISSOURI; DEFINING DISCRIMINATORY HOUSING PRACTICES 
AND CREATING A FAIR HOUSING COMMITTEE   

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri previously adopted 
Ordinance 10-10, providing for a Fair Housing Policy for the Village of Sunrise Beach, and the 
Board wishes to re-adopt and re-affirm the provisions of Ordinance 10-10, and further provide for 
its codification in the Village Code of Ordinance; 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. - Declaration of Policy 

The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sunrise Beach declares it to be the public policy of the 
Village of Sunrise Beach to eliminate discrimination and safeguard the right of any person to sell, 
purchase, lease, rent, or obtain real property without regard to race, color, religion, sex, handicap, 
familial status, or national origin. This ordinance shall be deemed an exercise of the police powers 
of the Village of Sunrise Beach for the protection of the public welfare, prosperity, health, and 
peace of the people of the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri. 

SECTION 2. - Definitions 

For the purpose of this ordinance the following terms, phrases, words, and their derivations shall 
have the meaning given herein unless the context otherwise indicates. 

a. Person shall include any individual, firm, partnership, or corporation. 

b. Aggrieved Person shall include any person who is attempting to provide housing for himself 
and/or his family in the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri. 

c. Discriminate shall mean distinctions in treatment because of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, 
familial status, or national origin of any person. 

SECTION 3. - Discriminatory Practices 

It shall be a discriminatory practice and a violation of the ordinance for any person to: 

a. Refuse to sell or rent after the making of a bona fide offer, or to refuse to negotiate for the sale 
or rental of, or otherwise make unavailable or deny, a dwelling to any person because of race, 
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or national origin of any person. 



2 
 

b. Discriminate against any person in the terms, conditions, or privileges of sale or rental of a 
dwelling, or in the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, because of race, 
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or national origin. 

c. Make, print, or publish, or cause to be made, printed, or published any notice, statement, or 
advertisement, with respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling that indicates any preference, 
limitation, or discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or 
national origin, or an intention to make any such preference, limitation, or discrimination. 

d. Represent to any person because of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or 
national origin, that any dwelling is not available for inspection, sale, or rental when such 
dwelling is in fact so available. 

e. For profit, to induce or attempt to induce any person to sell or rent any dwelling by 
representations regarding the entry or prospective entry into the neighborhood or a person or 
persons of a particular race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or national origin. 

f. Discriminate in the sale or rental of housing on the basis of a handicap of that buyer or renter; a 
person residing in or intending to reside in that dwelling after it is so sold, rented, or made 
available; or any person associated with that buyer or renter. The design and construction of new 
multi-family dwellings containing four (4) or more units is required to meet certain adaptability 
and accessibility requirements in accordance with Section 804 of the 1988 Fair Housing 
Amendments Act. 

g. Discriminate in the sale or rental of housing on the basis of familial status or because a family 
has children, exempting certain types of buildings that house older persons (e.g. Section 202 
housing) in accordance with Section 807 of the 1988 Fair Housing Amendments Act. 

SECTION 4. - Discrimination in the Financing of a House 

It shall be unlawful for any bank, building and loan association, insurance company, or other 
corporation, association, firm, or enterprise whose business consists in whole or in part in the 
making of commercial real estate loans, to deny a loan to a person applying therefore for the 
purpose of purchasing, constructing, repairing, or maintaining a dwelling, or to discriminate 
against any person in the fixing of the amount or conditions of such loan, because of the race, 
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or national origin of such person, or of any person 
therein associated in connection with such financing. 

SECTION 5. - Administration 

a. There is hereby created a Fair Housing Committee whose membership shall consist of five 
members, who shall be appointed by the Board Chairman of the Village of Sunrise Beach with the 
approval of the Board of Trustees. 

b. Every complaint of a violation of this ordinance shall be referred to a Fair Housing Committee. 
The Fair Housing Committee shall forthwith notify the person against whom the complaint is 
made. The identity of the aggrieved person shall be made known to the person against whom the 
complaint is made at that time. If the Fair Housing Committee, after investigation, finds there is 



3 
 

no merit to the complaint, the same shall be dismissed. If the Fair Housing Committee finds that 
there is merit in the complaint, in their opinion, then and in that event, the Fair Housing 
Committee will endeavor to eliminate the alleged discriminatory practice by conference and 
conciliation. 

c. If the Fair Housing Committee is unable to eliminate the alleged discriminatory practice by 
conference and conciliation, then and in that event, the Fair Housing Committee shall forward 
said complaint to the City Attorney for handling. The final determination of whether to prosecute 
in Municipal Court on said complaint shall be left to the City Attorney. 

d. Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed in such manner as to limit administrative 
enforcement mechanisms and recourse against alleged discriminatory housing practices through 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, as specified under Section 810 of the 
Fair Housing Act as amended effective March 12, 1989, or through the Missouri Commission on 
Human Rights, as specified in applicable state statutes. 

SECTION 6. - Enforcement 

a. Any person convicted in Municipal Court of a violation of this ordinance shall be punished by a 
fine of (not more than) $100 or by confinement in the County jail for (not more than) two days, or 
both such fine and imprisonment. 

b. The City Attorney, instead of filing a complaint in Municipal Court of said City, may, as an 
alternative remedy, seek to have the alleged discriminatory practices abated by an action for an 
injunction to be maintained in the appropriate Circuit Court of the State of Missouri. 

SECTION 7. - Severability 

If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of these standards shall be 
declared invalid for any reason whatsoever, such decision shall not affect the remaining portions 
of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and effect. To this end, the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. 

SECTION 8. - Savings Clause 

This ordinance shall not affect violations of any other ordinance, code, or regulation of the Village 
of Sunrise Beach existing prior to the effective date hereof. Any such violations shall be governed 
and shall continue to be punishable to the full extent of the law under the provisions of those 
ordinances, codes, or regulations in effect at the time the violation was committed. 

Read the second time and passed, approved, and adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Village 
of Sunrise Beach, Missouri, this 12th day of August, 2024, 

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES THIS ____ DAY OF ______________, 
2024.  

Roll Call Vote:     

Yeas: ___________________________________________________ 



4 
 

 

Nayes:__________________________________________________ 

 

APPROVED BY THE CHAIRMAN THIS ____ DAY OF ______________, 2024. 

 

     ____________________________________ 

      CHAIRMAN 

 

Attest: 

 

   

_________________________ 

VILLAGE CLERK       

 

 



Resolution No.  2024-16 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH, MISSOURI, STATING 
INTENT TO SEEK FUNDING THROUGH THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM AND AUTHORIZING THE BOARD CHAIRMAN AND 
CITY MANAGER TO PURSUE ACTIVITIES IN AN ATTEMPT TO SECURE 
FUNDING 
 
WHEREAS, Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 does state as its 
primary objective “the development of viable urban communities, by providing decent housing 
and suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities principally for persons of 
low and moderate income;” and 
 
WHEREAS, Title I does offer to communities the opportunity of monetary assistance in 
accomplishing its stated primary objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Missouri Department of Economic Development is designated to award 
Community Development Block Grant Funding under Title I; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City does have areas of need which may be addressed through the Community 
Development Block Grant Program; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri, that it 
desires to participate with the Missouri Department of Economic Development in the 
improvement of our community under the activities authorized pursuant to the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Village of Sunrise 
Beach Board of Trustees and the City Manager are hereby authorized to prepare and submit 
documents which are necessary in applying for funding and establishing an administrative 
organization to implement activities pursuant to the aforementioned act. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the applicant will dedicate up to 
$103,393 in cash to be used in this project (FY 23 Beachwood Drive improvement).  
 
Passed this 12th Day of August, 2024. 

 
     _______________________________ 
     Susan Schneider, Chairman 
 
Attest 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 



Resolution No.  2024-17 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH, MISSOURI, STATING 
INTENT TO SEEK FUNDING THROUGH THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM AND AUTHORIZING THE BOARD CHAIRMAN AND 
CITY MANAGER TO PURSUE ACTIVITIES IN AN ATTEMPT TO SECURE 
FUNDING 
 
WHEREAS, Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 does state as its 
primary objective “the development of viable urban communities, by providing decent housing 
and suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities principally for persons of 
low and moderate income;” and 
 
WHEREAS, Title I does offer to communities the opportunity of monetary assistance in 
accomplishing its stated primary objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Missouri Department of Economic Development is designated to award 
Community Development Block Grant Funding under Title I; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City does have areas of need which may be addressed through the Community 
Development Block Grant Program; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri, that it 
desires to participate with the Missouri Department of Economic Development in the 
improvement of our community under the activities authorized pursuant to the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Village of Sunrise 
Beach Board of Trustees and the City Manager are hereby authorized to prepare and submit 
documents which are necessary in applying for funding and establishing an administrative 
organization to implement activities pursuant to the aforementioned act. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the applicant will dedicate up to $87,212 
in cash to be used in this project (FY 24 Eddie Avenue and American Legion Drive 
improvement).  
 
Passed this 12th Day of August, 2024. 

 
     _______________________________ 
     Susan Schneider, Chairman 
 
Attest 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 



Resolution No.  2024-18 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH, MISSOURI, ADOPTING A 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY RELATING TO THE AWARD OR 
ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACTS SUPPORTED BY FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has previously adopted Ordinance 2024-06 governing 
disclosure of conflicts of interests and personal financial disclosure, pursuant to Missouri law; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to adopt a policy specific to Village officers, 
employees or agents engaged in the award or administration of contracts supported by federal 
grant funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sunrise 
Beach, Missouri, as follows: 
 

Section One. A Conflict of Interest Policy governing officers, employees or agents 
of the Village of Sunrise Beach engaged in the award of administration of 
contracts supported by federal grant funds, in the form attached as Exhibit A, is 
hereby adopted and approved. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager and all other staff members are hereby 
authorized to take such other action as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this 
Resolution. 

 
Passed this 12th Day of August, 2024. 

 
 
     _______________________________ 
     Susan Schneider, Chairman 
 
 
Attest 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 

 



Version 1.1 
Revised December 2023 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY FOR 
THE VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH, 

MISSOURI 

PURPOSE 
The purposes of this Conflict of Interest Policy is to ensure the efficient, fair, and 
professional administration of Federal grant funds in compliance with the State of 
Missouri CDBG Program policy and other applicable Federal and State standards, 
regulations, and laws. 

APPLICATION 
This Conflict of Interest Policy applies to all officers, employees, or agents of the 
Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri engaged in the award or administration of 
contracts supported by Federal grant funds. 

REQUIREMENTS 
No officer, employee or agent of the Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri shall 
participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported Federal 
grant funds, if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved.  Such a 
conflict would arise when: 

1. The employee, officer or agent;
2. Any member of his/her immediate family;
3. His/her partner; or
4. An organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above

has a financial or other interest in the firm selected for award. 

The Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri officers, employees or agents shall neither solicit 
nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential 
contractors, or subcontractors. 

REMEDIES 
To the extent permitted by Federal, State, or Local laws or regulations, violation of these 
standards may cause penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions to be taken 
against the Village of Sunrise Beach Missouri’s officers, employees, or agents, or the 
contractors, potential contractors, subcontractors, or their agents. 

Passed and adopted this ____ day of _____________________, 20____. 

______________________________________

Susan Schneider, Chairman, Board of Trustees

Attest: 

___________________________________ 

Erin Hays, City Clerk 

Exhibit A



Resolution No.  2024-19 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE RULES AND REGULATIONS REGARDING 
THE USE OF EXCESSIVE FORCE DURING NON-VIOLENT CIVIL RIGHTS 
DEMONSTRATIONS, INCLUDING PHYSICALLY BARRING ACCESS TO A 
FACILITY OR LOCATION WHICH IS THE SUBJECT OF SUCH DEMONSTRATION, 
AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF SUNRISE 
BEACH, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

ARTICLE I 

Section 1. The Village hereby adopts and will enforce thi19 policy  prohibiting  the  use  of  
excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any individual  
engaged  in  non-violent  civil  rights  demonstrations.  The Village also prohibits the physical 
barring of any entrance or exit to such a facility and will enforce all applicable State laws in this 
regard. 

ARTICLE II 

Section 1. Any person charged with a violation of any provision of this Resolution will be served 
by the Village with written notice stating the nature of the violation.  

Section 2. Any person convicted of this violation shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be 
fined an amount to exceed one hundred (100) dollars for each violation. Each day on which such 
violation occurs shall be deemed to be a separate offense. 

Section 3. Any person violating any of the provisions of this Resolution shall become liable to 
the Village of Sunrise Beach for any expense, loss or damage occasioned the Village of Sunrise 
Beach by reason of such violation. 

ARTICLE III 

Section 1. Passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sunrise Beach this 
_______ day of August, 2024. 

 

_______________________________ 
     Susan Schneider, Chairman 
 
 
Attest 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution No.  2024-20 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH COCHRAN 
ENGINEERING FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RELATING TO THE 
BEACHWOOD DRIVE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, TO BE FUNDED IN PART 
THROUGH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Sunrise Beach intends to pursue Community Development Block 
Grant funding through the State of Missouri for the contemplated Beachwood Drive 
Improvement Project, and the Village requires certain professional services to assist with 
preparing the grant application and in planning, designing, inspecting and administering the 
planned improvement project; and 

WHEREAS, the Village has canvassed the qualifications of various firms qualified to provide 
the requested professional services, and upon review has determined Cochran Engineering as the 
firm best qualified to provide said services, and has further requested a fee proposal from 
Cochran to provide said professional services as hereinafter provided;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sunrise 
Beach, as follows: 

1. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees is authorized and directed to enter into an 
agreement with Cochran Engineering for professional services in substantially the form 
as the attached Exhibit A. The total project fee shall be as provided for in the agreement 
and shall not exceed $83,750. 
 
2. The scope of services, project deliverables and fees shall be as provided for in the 

agreement and are restated here as reference: 
A. Application Phase. $5,000. Prepare preliminary engineering report and draft 
preliminary project plan, including cost estimates and implementation schedule. 
B. Design and Bidding Phase, $45,000. Conduct studies and investigations 
necessary to prepare preliminary plans; prepare final construction plans upon 
review by the Village and State officials; assist the Village with project bidding and 
bid evaluation. 
C. Construction Phase, $33,750. Serve as the Village representative in 
construction project administration, including periodic site visits, materials 
inspection, pay applications, change orders and other administrative tasks. 

 
3. The Design and Bidding and Construction Phase services shall only apply in the 

event the Village is awarded grant funding for this project. In the event the Village is 
not awarded grant funding, the agreement for Design and Construction Phase services 
shall be void and the project shall be terminated. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk and all other staff members are hereby 
authorized to take such other action as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this 
Resolution. 



Passed this 12th Day of August, 2024 

 
     _______________________________ 
     Susan Schneider, Chairman 
 
 
Attest 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 



  737 Rudder Road 
 Architecture St. Louis, Missouri 63026 
 Civil Engineering Telephone: 314-842-4033 
 Land Surveying Fax: 314-842-5957 
 Site Development E-Mail: david@cochraneng.com 

 
 

 

July 17, 2024 
 
 
Mr. Steve Roth 
City Manager 
Sunrise Beach 
16537 North Highway 5 
PO Box 348 
Sunrise Beach, MO  65079 
 
RE: Proposal – Grant Application and Engineering Services 
 Roadway Improvements – Beachwood Drive 2023 CDBG Project 
 
Dear Mr. Roth: 
 
Thank you for giving Cochran the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide application and 
professional engineering services for the above referenced project.  In accordance with our previous 
discussions and preventive pavement plan (approximate construction cost @ $500K), we offer the 
following professional services: 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 

1. Application Phase – we will prepare and submit the application in accordance with the attached 
cost estimate.  The application is a very detailed and involved process; here are some of the 
questions and information required on the application to the Missouri Department of Economic 
Development and Business and Community Services – CDBG Program: 

 
a. Prepare a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) for submittal with CDBG Application 
b. Participate in the required Public Hearing 
c. Facilitate Letters of Support from State Senator and State Representative 
d. Project map showing limits of improvements 
e. Project Profile 
f. Cost Summary – Estimates 
g. Expenditure Projections 
h. Narratives 
i. Project implementation schedule 

 
2. Design and Bidding Phase – we will provide professional services necessary to produce a quality 

set of construction and bidding documents.  The scope will be in accordance with the attached cost 
estimate.  Tasks will include the following: 

  
a. Determine the needs of the City by meeting with City officials and representative interest 

groups.   
b. Conduct topographic, property and utility surveys sufficient to develop plans for the project. 
c. Develop preliminary plans and cost estimates and recommend to the City the best overall 

general design. 
d. Submit four copies of preliminary plans and estimates for review by the City and the 

Missouri Department of Economic Development and Business and Community Services. 



Mr. Steve Roth  Page 2 
Beachwood Drive 2023 CDBG Project 
July 17, 2024 

 

e. Based on approvals of preliminary plans, prepare detailed construction plans, cost estimates, 
specifications and related documents as necessary for the purpose of soliciting bids for 
constructing the project. 

f. Ensure compliance with all regulations in regards to noise abatement and air quality, if 
necessary. 

g. Provide the City with five sets of completed plans, specifications and cost estimates for the 
purpose of obtaining construction authorization from the Missouri Department of Economic 
Development and Business and Community Services. 

h. Upon receipt of construction authorization from Missouri Department of Economic 
Development and Business and Community Services, make final corrections resulting from 
reviews by agencies involved and provide plans, specifications, and bid documents to the 
City. 

i. Provide the City with a list of qualified area bidders and assist the City in advertising for bids. 
j. Assist the City in evaluating bids and requesting concurrence in award from Missouri 

Department of Economic Development and Business and Community Services. 
 
3. Construction Phase - we will serve as the City’s representative for administering the terms of the 

construction contract between the City and their Contractor.  Cochran will endeavor to protect the 
City against defects and deficiencies in workmanship and materials in work by the Contractor.  
However, the furnishing of such project representation will not make Cochran responsible for the 
construction methods and procedures used by the Contractor or for the Contractor's failure to 
perform work in accordance with the contract documents.  Tasks will include the following: 

 
a. Provide the City with a list of qualified area bidders and assist in advertising for bids, 

distributing bid packages, pre-bid conference, addendums, and pre-bid questions from 
Contractors. 

b. Assist the City in opening and evaluating bids and requesting concurrence in award from 
Missouri Department of Economic Development and Business and Community Services. 

c. Assist the City with a preconstruction conference to discuss project details with the 
Contractor. 

d. Make periodic site visits to observe the Contractor's progress and quality of work, and to 
determine if the work conforms to the contract documents.  It is contemplated that survey 
staking and layout will be accomplished by the contractor's forces.  We will accompany 
Missouri Department of Economic Development and Business and Community Services 
representatives on visits of the project site as requested. 

e. Check shop drawings and review schedules and drawings submitted by the Contractor. 
f. Reject work not conforming to the project documents. 
g. Prepare change orders for issuance by the City as necessary and assure that proper approvals 

are made prior to work being performed. 
h. Review wage rates, postings, equal employment opportunity and other related items called 

for in the contract documents. 
i. Inspect materials, review material certifications furnished by Contractor, sample concrete and 

other materials as required, and provide for laboratory testing of samples.   
j. Maintain progress diary and other project records, measure and document quantities, and 

prepare monthly estimates for payments due the Contractor. 
k. Be present during critical construction operations. 
l. Participate in final inspection, provide the City with project documentation (diaries, test 

results, certifications, etc.), and provide as-built plans for the City’s records. 
 
 
 



Mr. Steve Roth  Page 3 
Beachwood Drive 2023 CDBG Project 
July 17, 2024 

 

OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITY: 
 

1. The Owner shall give prompt and thorough consideration to all sketches, drawings, bid documents 
and other documents laid before him.  Prompt decisions will be required if project is to proceed on 
schedule. 

2. Advertisement and receipt of construction bids. 
 
 
FEE: 
 

1. The total amount of fee to be paid for the “Application Phase” outlined in this proposal shall be a 
lump sum fee of $5,000.00.   

 
2. If the grant application is approved by the Missouri Department of Economic Development and 

Business and Community Services, the total amount of fee to be paid for the “Design and Bidding 
Phase” outlined in this proposal shall be a lump sum fee of $45,000.00.   
 

3. If the grant application is approved by the Missouri Department of Economic Development and 
Business and Community Services, the total amount of fee to be paid for the “Construction Phase” 
outlined in this proposal shall be a lump sum fee of $33,750.00.   

 
 
PAYMENT: 
 

1. An invoice for progress payments will be submitted monthly during the performance period of this 
contract for professional services rendered.  It is agreed that monthly progress payments for fees 
earned under this agreement are due and payable within thirty (30) days of submission of invoices.  
Any invoices remaining unpaid beyond thirty (30) days will accrue interest at the rate of one and 
one-half (1½%) per month on the unpaid balance. 

2. It is further understood that if the project is abandoned, or if any work being performed is 
suspended in whole or in part prior to the completion of any phase, payment will be due in direct 
proportion to the amount of work accomplished. 

3. In addition, payment will be due for all reimbursable expenses incurred prior to receipt of written 
notice or such abandonment or suspension. 

 
 

TIME OF PERFORMANCE: 
 

We will make every effort to complete the project within the Owner’s time frame and according to 
schedule.  Cochran will not, however, be responsible for delays caused by events beyond our control. 
 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

Attached to this proposal is a copy of the Cochran Standard Terms and Conditions. These terms and 
conditions shall apply to this proposal for professional services, which can also serve as a letter 
agreement.  This document is enclosed for your review and reference. 
 
 
 
 



Mr. Steve Roth  Page 4 
Beachwood Drive 2023 CDBG Project 
July 17, 2024 

 

GENERAL: 
 

Cochran’s reputation is based on understanding and meeting all the project objectives of our clients.  
We look forward to having an opportunity to demonstrate that responsiveness by providing timely and 
cost effective professional services. 
 
If you would like to authorize Cochran to perform the professional services outlined in this proposal, 
please indicate your acceptance of the terms of this letter agreement by signing in the space provided 
below and returning one (1) copy for our contract files. 
 

If you have any questions or changes regarding this proposal, please contact me at 314-842-4033.  Thank 
you. 
 
THIS CONTRACT CONTAINS A BINDING ARBITRATION PROVISION WHICH MAY BE ENFORCED BY 
THE PARTIES. 
 
Sincerely, Acceptance: 
  City of Sunrise Beach 
  
 
 
 
Dave Christensen, P.E. By:   
Vice President  
  Title:       

 
 Date:       
 

Attachments – Cochran Standard Terms & Conditions 
                          

  



Resolution No.  2024-21 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH COCHRAN 
ENGINEERING FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RELATING TO THE EDDIE 
AVENUE AND AMERICAN LEGION DRIVE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, TO 
BE FUNDED IN PART THROUGH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Sunrise Beach intends to pursue Community Development Block 
Grant funding through the State of Missouri for the contemplated Eddie Avenue and American 
Legion Drive Improvement Project, and the Village requires certain professional services to 
assist with preparing the grant application and in planning, designing, inspecting and 
administering the planned improvement project; and 

WHEREAS, the Village has canvassed the qualifications of various firms qualified to provide 
the requested professional services, and upon review has determined Cochran Engineering as the 
firm best qualified to provide said services, and has further requested a fee proposal from 
Cochran to provide said professional services as hereinafter provided;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sunrise 
Beach, as follows: 

1. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees is authorized and directed to enter into an 
agreement with Cochran Engineering for professional services in substantially the form 
as the attached Exhibit A. The total project fee shall be as provided for in the agreement 
and shall not exceed $67,212. 
 
2. The scope of services, project deliverables and fees shall be as provided for in the 

agreement and are restated here as reference: 
A. Application Phase. $5,000. Prepare preliminary engineering report and draft 
preliminary project plan, including cost estimates and implementation schedule. 
B. Design and Bidding Phase, $35,550. Conduct studies and investigations 
necessary to prepare preliminary plans; prepare final construction plans upon 
review by the Village and State officials; assist the Village with project bidding and 
bid evaluation. 
C. Construction Phase, $26,662. Serve as the Village representative in 
construction project administration, including periodic site visits, materials 
inspection, pay applications, change orders and other administrative tasks. 

 
3. The Design and Bidding and Construction Phase services shall only apply in the 

event the Village is awarded grant funding for this project. In the event the Village is 
not awarded grant funding, the agreement for Design and Construction Phase services 
shall be void and the project shall be terminated. 

 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk and all other staff members are hereby 
authorized to take such other action as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this 
Resolution. 

Passed this 12th Day of August, 2024 

 
     _______________________________ 
     Susan Schneider, Chairman 
 
 
Attest 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 



  737 Rudder Road 
 Architecture St. Louis, Missouri 63026 
 Civil Engineering Telephone: 314-842-4033 
 Land Surveying Fax: 314-842-5957 
 Site Development E-Mail: david@cochraneng.com 

 
 
July 17, 2024 
 
 
Mr. Steve Roth 
City Manager 
Sunrise Beach 
16537 North Highway 5 
PO Box 348 
Sunrise Beach, MO  65079 
 
RE: Proposal – Grant Application and Engineering Services 
 Roadway Improvements – 2024 CDBG Project 

American Legion Drive and Eddie Ave 
 
Dear Mr. Roth: 
 
Thank you for giving Cochran the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide application and 
professional engineering services for the above referenced project.  In accordance with our previous 
discussions and preventive pavement plan (approximate construction cost @ $395K), we offer the 
following professional services: 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 

1. Application Phase – we will prepare and submit the application in accordance with the attached 
cost estimate.  The application is a very detailed and involved process; here are some of the 
questions and information required on the application to the Missouri Department of Economic 
Development and Business and Community Services – CDBG Program: 

 
a. Prepare a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) for submittal with CDBG Application 
b. Participate in the required Public Hearing 
c. Facilitate Letters of Support from State Senator and State Representative 
d. Project map showing limits of improvements 
e. Project Profile 
f. Cost Summary – Estimates 
g. Expenditure Projections 
h. Narratives 
i. Project implementation schedule 

 
2. Design and Bidding Phase – we will provide professional services necessary to produce a quality 

set of construction and bidding documents.  The scope will be in accordance with the attached cost 
estimate.  Tasks will include the following: 

  
a. Determine the needs of the City by meeting with City officials and representative interest 

groups.   
b. Conduct topographic, property and utility surveys sufficient to develop plans for the project. 
c. Develop preliminary plans and cost estimates and recommend to the City the best overall 

general design. 
d. Submit four copies of preliminary plans and estimates for review by the City and the 

Missouri Department of Economic Development and Business and Community Services. 



Mr. Steve Roth  Page 2 
2024 CDBG Project – American Legion Dr. and Eddie Ave. 
July 17, 2024 

e. Based on approvals of preliminary plans, prepare detailed construction plans, cost estimates, 
specifications and related documents as necessary for the purpose of soliciting bids for 
constructing the project. 

f. Ensure compliance with all regulations in regards to noise abatement and air quality, if 
necessary. 

g. Provide the City with five sets of completed plans, specifications and cost estimates for the 
purpose of obtaining construction authorization from the Missouri Department of Economic 
Development and Business and Community Services. 

h. Upon receipt of construction authorization from Missouri Department of Economic 
Development and Business and Community Services, make final corrections resulting from 
reviews by agencies involved and provide plans, specifications, and bid documents to the 
City. 

i. Provide the City with a list of qualified area bidders and assist the City in advertising for bids. 
j. Assist the City in evaluating bids and requesting concurrence in award from Missouri 

Department of Economic Development and Business and Community Services. 
 
3. Construction Phase - we will serve as the City’s representative for administering the terms of the 

construction contract between the City and their Contractor.  Cochran will endeavor to protect the 
City against defects and deficiencies in workmanship and materials in work by the Contractor.  
However, the furnishing of such project representation will not make Cochran responsible for the 
construction methods and procedures used by the Contractor or for the Contractor's failure to 
perform work in accordance with the contract documents.  Tasks will include the following: 

 
a. Provide the City with a list of qualified area bidders and assist in advertising for bids, 

distributing bid packages, pre-bid conference, addendums, and pre-bid questions from 
Contractors. 

b. Assist the City in opening and evaluating bids and requesting concurrence in award from 
Missouri Department of Economic Development and Business and Community Services. 

c. Assist the City with a preconstruction conference to discuss project details with the 
Contractor. 

d. Make periodic site visits to observe the Contractor's progress and quality of work, and to 
determine if the work conforms to the contract documents.  It is contemplated that survey 
staking and layout will be accomplished by the contractor's forces.  We will accompany 
Missouri Department of Economic Development and Business and Community Services 
representatives on visits of the project site as requested. 

e. Check shop drawings and review schedules and drawings submitted by the Contractor. 
f. Reject work not conforming to the project documents. 
g. Prepare change orders for issuance by the City as necessary and assure that proper approvals 

are made prior to work being performed. 
h. Review wage rates, postings, equal employment opportunity and other related items called 

for in the contract documents. 
i. Inspect materials, review material certifications furnished by Contractor, sample concrete and 

other materials as required, and provide for laboratory testing of samples.   
j. Maintain progress diary and other project records, measure and document quantities, and 

prepare monthly estimates for payments due the Contractor. 
k. Be present during critical construction operations. 
l. Participate in final inspection, provide the City with project documentation (diaries, test 

results, certifications, etc.), and provide as-built plans for the City’s records. 
 
 
 



Mr. Steve Roth  Page 3 
2024 CDBG Project – American Legion Dr. and Eddie Ave. 
July 17, 2024 

OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITY: 
 

1. The Owner shall give prompt and thorough consideration to all sketches, drawings, bid documents 
and other documents laid before him.  Prompt decisions will be required if project is to proceed on 
schedule. 

2. Advertisement and receipt of construction bids. 
 
 
FEE: 
 

1. The total amount of fee to be paid for the “Application Phase” outlined in this proposal shall be a 
lump sum fee of $5,000.00.   

 
2. If the grant application is approved by the Missouri Department of Economic Development and 

Business and Community Services, the total amount of fee to be paid for the “Design and Bidding 
Phase” outlined in this proposal shall be a lump sum fee of $35,550.00.   
 

3. If the grant application is approved by the Missouri Department of Economic Development and 
Business and Community Services, the total amount of fee to be paid for the “Construction Phase” 
outlined in this proposal shall be a lump sum fee of $26,662.00.   

 
 
PAYMENT: 
 

1. An invoice for progress payments will be submitted monthly during the performance period of this 
contract for professional services rendered.  It is agreed that monthly progress payments for fees 
earned under this agreement are due and payable within thirty (30) days of submission of invoices.  
Any invoices remaining unpaid beyond thirty (30) days will accrue interest at the rate of one and 
one-half (1½%) per month on the unpaid balance. 

2. It is further understood that if the project is abandoned, or if any work being performed is 
suspended in whole or in part prior to the completion of any phase, payment will be due in direct 
proportion to the amount of work accomplished. 

3. In addition, payment will be due for all reimbursable expenses incurred prior to receipt of written 
notice or such abandonment or suspension. 

 
 

TIME OF PERFORMANCE: 
 

We will make every effort to complete the project within the Owner’s time frame and according to 
schedule.  Cochran will not, however, be responsible for delays caused by events beyond our control. 
 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

Attached to this proposal is a copy of the Cochran Standard Terms and Conditions. These terms and 
conditions shall apply to this proposal for professional services, which can also serve as a letter 
agreement.  This document is enclosed for your review and reference. 
 
 
 
 



Mr. Steve Roth  Page 4 
2024 CDBG Project – American Legion Dr. and Eddie Ave. 
July 17, 2024 

GENERAL: 
 

Cochran’s reputation is based on understanding and meeting all the project objectives of our clients.  
We look forward to having an opportunity to demonstrate that responsiveness by providing timely and 
cost effective professional services. 
 
If you would like to authorize Cochran to perform the professional services outlined in this proposal, 
please indicate your acceptance of the terms of this letter agreement by signing in the space provided 
below and returning one (1) copy for our contract files. 
 

If you have any questions or changes regarding this proposal, please contact me at 314-842-4033.  Thank 
you. 
 
THIS CONTRACT CONTAINS A BINDING ARBITRATION PROVISION WHICH MAY BE ENFORCED BY 
THE PARTIES. 
 
Sincerely, Acceptance: 
  City of Sunrise Beach 
  
 
 
 
Dave Christensen, P.E. By:   
Vice President  
  Title:       

 
 Date:       
 

Attachments – Cochran Standard Terms & Conditions 
                          

  



Resolution No.  2024-22 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES TO ENTER INTO AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH 
CRABCO, LLC dba ROUGH WATER DOCKS 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Sunrise Beach (“Village’) has received a request from Crabco LLC, 
dba Rough Water Docks, relating to provision of water and sanitary sewer utility services to the 
Rough Water Docks business location at site at 17685 N Highway 5; and 

WHEREAS, the Village is agreeable to such request, provided that Crabco LLC, dba Rough 
Water Docks, agrees to voluntarily annex into the Village, and provide other considerations as 
contained in the attached Annexation Agreement;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sunrise 
Beach, as follows: 

1.  The Chairman of the Board of Trustees is hereby authorized to execute an annexation 
agreement with Crabco LLC, dba Rough Water Docks, substantially in the form of the 
attached Exhibit A, which specifies terms and conditions for the Village provision of water 
and sanitary sewer services to the Rough Water Docks business location site at 17685 N. 
Highway 5.  

2. This approval is conditioned upon the City Attorney reviewing and approving the final 
agreement as to form. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk and all other staff members are hereby 
authorized to take such other action as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this 
Resolution. 

Passed this 12th Day of August, 2024. 

 
 
     _______________________________ 
     Susan Schneider, Chairman 
 
 
Attest 
 
 
________________________________ 
Erin Hays, City Clerk 



Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IRREVOCABLE CONSENT TO ANNEXATION  

AND AGREEMENT RELATING THERETO 

 

This Irrevocable Consent to Annexation and Agreement Relating Thereto is made and entered 
into this   _____ day of ________ 2024. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, CRABCO, LLC, a Missouri Limited Liability Corporation (hereinafter 
“Landowner,”) owns certain property commonly identified as 55 Rough Water Drive, Sunrise 
Beach, MO 65079 (Camden County Parcel Nos. 02-8.0-33.0-000.0-003-001.000, 02-8.0-33.0-
000.0-003-002.000 and 02-8.0-33.0-000.0-004-001.000) hereinafter referred to as the 
“Property.” 

WHEREAS, the Property lies outside of the Village limits of the Village of Sunrise Beach, 
Missouri, (hereinafter the "Village"); and 

WHEREAS, the Village and Landowner desire to enter into an agreement, a condition of which 
is that Landowner has agreed to be annexed into the Village when that becomes possible;  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties as follows: 

1. The Village hereby agrees to extend public water and sanitary sewer service to the 
Landowner property in a reasonable timeframe not to exceed ninety (90) days following 
execution of this agreement by the Village. The Village shall waive any connection fee, 



impact fee or other fee associated with the provision of water and / or sanitary sewer 
service to the property. Landowner shall not be subject to regular Village user charges for 
water and / or sanitary sewer unless or until water / sanitary sewer meters, tanks, grinder 
pumps and appurtenances have been installed and are ready for service connection. 
Landowner shall provide easement for water / sanitary sewer mains and appurtenances as 
may be necessary for the Village to extend service to the Property, and as may be 
mutually agreed between Village and Landowner. In consideration of necessary 
easements, Village agrees to accept all costs in providing water and sanitary sewer 
connections to Landowner properties, including the office and manufacturing / shop 
locations.. The Village further agrees to accept all costs for preparing and recording 
easement(s) as may be necessary. As a condition of Village extension of water and 
sanitary sewer services as herein authorized, Landowner agrees to voluntary annexation 
of the Property into the Village as provided in Section 2 of this agreement. 

2. If requested by the Village Clerk, Landowner shall, within such time as specified by the 
Village Clerk, submit a verified petition requesting annexation of Landowner' property to 
the Village Clerk for presentation to the Village Board of Trustees. The Village Clerk 
may request Landowner to present an annexation petition at any time after Landowner's 
property becomes contiguous to the corporate limits of the Village. The provisions of this 
paragraph shall be enforceable by specific performance.  In addition, Landowner hereby 
authorizes the Village Clerk to file such a petition on its behalf it it chooses not to comply 
upon request. 

3. Landowner further agrees that it shall not consent to voluntary annexation by any other 
municipality without the consent of the Village. 

4. Landowner shall give a copy of this agreement to each person who buys all or a portion 
of Landowner' property. 

5. If Landowner fails to comply with any of the provisions of this agreement or repudiates 
the terms of this agreement, the Village may terminate water and sewer service to 
Landowner's property and disconnect the sewer lines serving Landowner' property from 
the System. The Village shall give Landowner six months prior written notice of its intent 
to terminate sewer service. 

6. This agreement is not intended to confer any rights or remedies on any person other than 
the parties. 

7. The benefits and burdens of this agreement are intended to attach to and run with the land 
and shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective legal 
representatives, successors, heirs and assigns. All persons claiming under the parties shall 
conform to and observe the provisions of this agreement. 



8. This agreement shall be recorded in the office of the Camden County Recorder of Deeds 
at the Village's expense. 

  Village of Sunrise Beach, Missouri 
By: 
 
______________________________ 
Susan Schneider, Chairman 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Erin Hays, Village Clerk 

Crabco, LLC 
By: 
 
______________________________ 
 
 
Title: _________________________ 

 
 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 
On this ___ day of ___________, 2024, before me personally appeared ___________________, 
to me personally known, who being duly sworn,  declared that he/she/they are 
__________________ of Crabco LLC and that this instrument was signed on behalf of said 
Crabco LLC by authority of its Members and the said person(s) acknowledged said instrument to 
be the free act and deed of said Crabco LLC.. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF , I have hereunto set my hand  and  affixed  my  official seal, at 
my  office in  ___________________________________, the day and year first above written. 
 
  
 
My commission expires:  
 
 
 
Notary Public 
 



BILL NO.   2024-17  

ORD NO.  _______________  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH FOR IMPROVING AND 
BEAUTIFYING THE CITY BY REQUIRING PROPERTY OWNERS TO MAINTAIN 
THE RIGHT OF WAY ABUTTING THEIR PROPERTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Village desires to maintain the beauty and aesthetics of the Village's 
neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, the Courts of this State have declared that this is a proper concern to be addressed 
through the police powers of a Village; and 

WHEREAS, the Courts of this State have upheld the right of a Village to require abutting 
property owners to maintain the Village right-of-way (Village of Overland v. Wade, 85 S.W.3d 
70, 73 (Mo. App. E.D. 2002); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
VILLAGE OF SUNRISE BEACH, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION ONE: Duty Of Property Owner To Maintain Right of Way. 

A. It is the duty of every property owner to keep the sidewalks, curbs, gutters, culverts, 
and driveway entrances adjacent to his or her property and in the Village in good repair at all 
times and free from irregularities and offsets in the surface thereof that may render the same 
unsafe for use or which may create a hazard to pedestrians or vehicles. 

B. Every property owner shall keep the grass or other vegetation in the right-of-way 
adjacent to his or her property mowed in compliance with the maximum height provided in 
the Village Code.  The property owner shall also keep any culverts or ditches in the right of 
way mowed and maintained in the same manner.   

C. No property owner shall plant or permit any tree or woody shrub in the right of way.  
The maintenance, care, and removal of any such tree or woody shrub in the right of way shall 
be the sole responsibility of the adjoining property owner. 

D. Every property owner shall keep the right-of-way adjoining his or her property free 
from litter. 

E. For the purposes of this ordinance the term ‘right-of-way’ shall mean the Village right-
of-way from the edge of the paved portion of the street parallel to a property owner’s 
property line to the property owner’s property line. 

F. Violation of this section shall be a municipal ordinance violation punishable by a fine 
of not more than five hundred dollars ($500) and/or imprisonment not to exceed ninety (90) 
days.  Each violation shall also be considered a nuisance. 



SECTION TWO: Culvert and Ditch Maintenance; Obstruction Removal By The Village; 
Costs. 

A. Every culvert and ditch shall be kept clear of any obstructions that might interfere with 
the flow of drainage water, and it shall be the obligation of the property owner to inspect 
and maintain the culverts and ditches. 

B. If a culvert or ditch has an obstruction of any form that interferes with the flow of 
drainage water and the property owner does not correct the problem within 30 days after 
notification from the street superintendent of the owner's duty to remedy such obstruction, 
then the Street Superintendent shall have the authority to enter onto the right-of-way 
adjacent to such owner's land and use any suitable means necessary to restore the adequate 
flow of drainage water through such culvert. 

C. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice for the actual cost of clearing such 
obstruction, the owner shall pay to the City its cost incurred in remedying such obstruction, 
and if the same is not timely paid, the Board of Trustees may, by ordinance, levy such cost 
as a special tax bill against the property on which such culvert is located, or that is adjacent 
to such culvert, which tax shall be collected like other special tax bills and which shall 
constitute a first lien on the property until paid. 

SECTION THREE: The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof 
is declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the 
validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 

SECTION FOUR: This ordinance shall be considered effective immediately upon final 
passage and approval. 

First Reading: _______________  
 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES THIS ____ DAY OF ______________, 2024.  
 
Roll Call Vote:    Yeas: ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Nayes: __________________________________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED BY THE CHAIRMAN THIS ____ DAY OF ______________, 2024. 
 
    
 ____________________________________ 
  CHAIRMAN 
 
Attest: 
 
   
_________________________ 
VILLAGE CLERK       

 

 





















Alpha Engineering & Surveying                                                    PH: (573)392-3312 
3048 Hwy. 52 
Eldon, MO 65026 
 
Civil & Structural Engineering        Land Surveying          Materials Testing 
 
August 5, 2024 
 
Attn: Trustees of the Village of Sunrise Beach 
 
Subject: Monthly Progress report for Pay App No. 11 
 
Dear Trustees, 
 
Today is day 366 days of the Sewer Improvement project.   
 
Progress of Contract 1: Brulez Trenching, LLC has completed the COMO sewer 
extension. They are awaiting Change Order No. 4 before they pressure test and turn on 
the line or else they would have to open cut the line to complete the Hwy 5 bore over to 
Rough Water Docks.  The Summer Point project is complete, other than some minor 
clean-up.  The grass will not take until the end of September anyways.  The Indian Hills, 
Cliff Drive and Camden Pass lift stations are complete. The sewer connection at the West 
Side RV park has been completed.  The Eddie Hills lift Station is installed with just about 
half of a days work left to complete.  The WWTF lift station is waiting to be installed, I 
would expect about two weeks work at these locations pending the rock.        
 
Some clean-up of the project the project has been completed as punch list item from the 
property owners.  Tony is to place the issues on a list for Brulez to complete as time is 
available.  These issues will be completed before retainage is paid out.  
 
Sewer connection requests.  
Please see the attached Change Order No. 4 for Rough Water Docks and Dove lane.  
 
Issues: The lift stations have a buildup of fats, oils and grease (FOG) which is a typical 
weekly maintenance item.  We have been looking at options to add aeration to the wet 
wells and a float tree to hold down the floats.  Most municipalities have a staff member 
that monitors and pumps out the FOG on a weekly basis .   We added aeration at another 
facility which has reduced the maintenance activity to every other month. 
 
Respectfully yours, 
 
Jared Wheaton, PE 
Principal 
 



Project Engineer
8/5/24



Item No. Description
Current Bid 

Quantity

 New  
Quantities 

W/C.O. No. 4 Unit Unit Price New Cost

1
Bonding/Mobilization expense.  This amount shall be limited to no 
more than 5% of the Contract amount. 1 1 LS 30,000.00$         30,000.00$               

2 4" SDR-21 Force Main 15,059 15,469 LF 18.00$                 278,442.00$             

3
4" Force Main Bore Restraint Joint Pipe w/8" PVC 
Casing 99 99 LF 160.00$               15,840.00$               

4 4" Force Main Bore Restraint Joint Pipe, No Casing 586 586 LF 130.00$               76,180.00$               
5 3" SDR-21 Force Main 12,170 12,250 LF 16.00$                 196,000.00$             
6 3" Force Main Bore Restraint Joint Pipe, No Casing 95 50 LF 128.00$               6,400.00$                  
7 2" SDR-21 Force Main 4,724 4,724 LF 15.00$                 70,860.00$               
8 2" Force Main Bore Restraint Joint Pipe 20 20 LF 120.00$               2,400.00$                  
9 1-1/2" SDR-21 Force Main 7,300 7,345 LF 15.00$                 110,175.00$             

10 1-1/2" Force Main Bore, Restraint Joint Pipe 3,363 3,265 LF 78.00$                 254,670.00$             
11 Detectable Locator Wire Terminals 4 4 LF 5.00$                   20.00$                       
12 6” SDR-35-Gravity Line 480 480 LF 26.00$                 12,480.00$               
13 4” SDR-35-Gravity Line 10,305 10,455 LF 20.00$                 209,100.00$             
14 4” SDR-35  PVC Encasement Sleeve 815 815 LF 10.00$                 8,150.00$                  
15 6” SDR-35 PVC Encasement Sleeve 600 600 LF 16.00$                 9,600.00$                  
16 Electrical Wiring in Conduit from Power Supply to Pump 7,370 7,920 LF 14.00$                 110,880.00$             
17 4” Gate Valve and Box 12 12 EA 1,100.00$           13,200.00$               
18 3” Gate Valve and Box 6 6 EA 1,000.00$           6,000.00$                  
19 2” Gate Valve and Box 8 10 EA 800.00$               8,000.00$                  
20

          
Truck Charge) 5 5 EA 500.00$               2,500.00$                  

21 Air Release Valve 12 12 EA 3,400.00$           40,800.00$               
22 Concrete Anchors 57 57 EA 150.00$               8,550.00$                  
23 Concrete Encasement 10 10 EA 30.00$                 300.00$                     
24 Simplex Grinder Station Complete-in-place 45 45 EA 6,900.00$           310,500.00$             

25 Duplex Grinder Station 4' by 6' Basin, Complete–in-place 13 14 EA 9,800.00$           137,200.00$             

26 Duplex Grinder Station 4' by 8' Basin, Complete–in-place 2 2 EA 11,200.00$         22,400.00$               

27
Retro-fit Simplex Grinder Station (Pump & Panel) Complete–in-
place. 12 11 EA 6,179.00$           67,969.00$               

28
      

Station (Pump & Panel) Complete–in-place 1 1 EA 6,777.00$           6,777.00$                  
29 Lift Station (Indian Hills) 1 1 EA 184,500.00$       184,500.00$             
30 Lift Station (Old Sunrise Acres) 0 0 EA 88,400.00$         -$                           
31 Lift Station (Camden Pass) 1 1 EA 129,400.00$       129,400.00$             
32 Lift Station (Cliff Dr.) 1 1 EA 103,400.00$       103,400.00$             
33 Lift Station Retrofit (WWTP NO. 1) 1 1 EA 140,900.00$       140,900.00$             
34 Lift Station (Eddie Rd.) 1 1 EA 166,400.00$       166,400.00$             
35 Repair & Replace Concrete Surface 144 144 EA 20.00$                 2,880.00$                  
36 Repair & Replace Asphalt Surface 300 300 EA 18.00$                 5,400.00$                  
37 Repair & Replace Gravel Surface 850 1,024 EA 26.30$                 26,931.20$               
38 Repair & Replace 2" Brown Gravel Surface 195 240 EA 45.00$                 10,800.00$               
39 Site Restoration 57,473 58,643 LF 1.25$                   73,303.75$               
40 C.O. No. 3, COMO Exstension 1 1 EA 207,935.00$       207,935.00$             
41 C.O. No. 4, Rough Water Docks, Hwy 5 Bore 1 1 EA 25,380.00$         25,380.00$               

                                                                                                   New Contract Amount 3,092,622.95$      
Previous Contract amount 3,030,607.25$      
Difference 62,015.70$           

  Date: 8/02/2024

Brulez Trenching LLC

Change Order #4

Village of Sunrise Beach - Phase III 
Sewer System Improvements

Project No. 10163-19-E1                     



Item No. Description- Sewer Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount of Bid QTY Completed QTY

1
Bonding/Mobilization expense.  This amount shall be limited 
to no more than 5% of the Contract amount. 1 EA 8,500.00$     8,500.00$         1 8,500.00$                  

2 2" SDR-21 Force Main 1,750 LF 23.00$           40,250.00$       1960 45,080.00$                
3 2" Force Main Bore, Restraint Joint Pipe w/6" PVC Casing 125 LF 250.00$        31,250.00$       200 50,000.00$                
4 2" Force Main Bore, Restraint Joint No Casing 320 LF 150.00$        48,000.00$       280 42,000.00$                
5 1-1/2" SDR-21 Force Main 440 LF 22.00$           9,680.00$         365 8,030.00$                  
7 Duplex Grinder Pump (COMO Property) 1 EA 18,500.00$   18,500.00$       1 18,500.00$                
8 Duplex Grinder Pumpi(Wilson Property) 1 EA 11,250.00$   11,250.00$       1 11,250.00$                
9 Electrical Wiring in Conduit from Power Supply to Pump 345 LF 21.00$           7,245.00$         295 6,195.00$                  

10 2” Gate Valve- Complete-in-place 1 EA 1,500.00$     1,500.00$         2 3,000.00$                  
11 Air Release Valve - Complete-In-Place 1 EA 4,900.00$     4,900.00$         1 4,900.00$                  
12 Site Restoration 2,535 LF 4.00$             10,140.00$       2620 10,480.00$                

191,215.00$  207,935.00$             

 Cost Estimate
Line Item No. 40          

Completed Totals 

TOTAL NUMERICAL COST ESTIMATE FOR SEWER

Completed 7/30/24

COMO, Wilson and 
Twenter 

Est 4/24/2024

3048 Hwy. 52
Eldon, MO 65026

PH: (573) 392-3312

Shoreline Surveying & 
Engineering, LLC Cost Estimate for         

Water &   Sewer Improvements



Item No. Description- Sewer Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount of Bid

1
Bonding/Mobilization expense.  This amount shall be limited 
to no more than 5% of the Contract amount. 1 EA 1,000.00$      1,000.00$           

2 2" SDR-21 Force Main 80 LF 23.00$            1,840.00$           
3 2" Force Main Bore, Restraint Joint Pipe w/6" PVC Casing 60 LF 250.00$          15,000.00$        
4 2" Restaint Joint Pipe, w/Open Cut Casing 6" PVC Casing 40 LF 142.00$          5,680.00$           
5 2” Gate Valve- Complete-in-place 1 EA 1,500.00$      1,500.00$           
6 Site Restoration 80 LF 4.50$              360.00$              

25,380.00$     

Total Both Services 25,380.00$     

8/2/2024

TOTAL NUMERICAL COST ESTIMATE FOR SEWER

Note: This estimate will install Sewer to the property line of Rough Water Docks.. 1- MoDOT Road bore 
permit will need to be completed. 4- Easements will need to be completed.

Rough Water Docks,      Hwy 
5 Bore

 Cost Estimate

3048 Hwy. 52
Eldon, MO 65026

PH: (573) 392-3312

Shoreline Surveying & 
Engineering, LLC Cost Estimate for      

Sewer Improvements
L     Line Item No. 41 



MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CENTER
DRINKING WATER REIMBURSEMENT FORM

 SRF GRANT AND DIRECT LOAN

1. TYPE OF REQUEST:   _X_ PARTIAL   ____ FINAL 3. PAYMENT REQUEST NUMBER:  __11__      PAGE 1 OF _1__

2. PROJECT NUMBER: c295877-01 4. PERIOD COVERED BY THIS REPORT:

    from: __5/31/24____      to: __8/2,24_______

5. RECIPIENT ORGANIZATION: 6. LOAN TRUSTEE:
Village of Sunrise Beach UMB BANK, NA
16363 MO-5 IN TRUST FOR CAMDEN COUNTY PWSD NO 1
SUNRISE BEACH, MO 65079 2 S. BROADWAY, SUITE 600 C295877-01

ST. LOUIS, MO  63102

7. ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS INCURRED (EXCLUDING RETAINAGE)
Recipient Project Name and Number Current Period     Cumulative Office Use Only
Show construction, engineering, administrative costs, etc.

  A.

  B.

  C.

  D.

  E.

  F.

  G.

  H.

  I.

  J.

  K.

  L.

Z. Total from continuation sheet (lines 7.M. - 7.Y.)

  AA.  Eligible costs incurred to date

BB. TOTAL APPROVED ELIGIBLE COSTS TO DATE: BB.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY CC. LESS AMOUNT PREVIOUSLY APPROVED FROM SRF GRANT CC.

DD. LESS AMOUNT PREVIOUSLY APPROVED FROM SRF LOAN DD.

EE. AMOUNT PAYABLE TO RECIPIENT FROM SRF GRANT EE.

FF. AMOUNT PAYABLE TO RECIPIENT FROM SRF LOAN FF.

  Signature of authorized certifying official:

RECIPIENT:
   Date signed:

   Typed or printed name and title:

  Signature of review official:

DNR REVIEWER:
Office Use Only    Date signed:

   Typed or printed name and title:

Attorney - McCaffree ( No Change) -$

258,986.48$  

298,733.48$  3,542,773.05$           

Contractor -Brulez Trenching LLC

923,433.70$              

2,551,314.35$           

39,747.00$  Engineer - Shoreline Surveying & Engineering

8. CERTIFICATION: By signing this reimbursement form, I 
certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

1) Billed costs or disbursements are in accordance with the
terms of the project;

2) Payment due represents the amount due which has not been
previously requested;

3) An inspection has been performed;

4) All work is in accordance with the terms of the funding
agreements; and

5) The payrolls for this reimbursement request contains the 
information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(ii) 
the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(3)(i) and that such information is correct and complete; 
and the project is in compliance with the requirements of 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(1) based upon the most recent payrolls copies .

68,025.00$



Item No. 13 

Running Total 

Completed To date 

from Pay App

Sub-tract Previous 

Month

Minus Retainage 

amount to Be Paid Pay App Total

Enter Amount on 

Reimbursement Form 

in Colum G. PAID Date

Pay App No. 1 14,580.00$         -$                            13,851.00$                574,669.92$                         560,818.92$                

Pay App No. 2 24,080.00$         9,500.00$                  9,025.00$                  137,750.53$                         128,725.53$                

Pay App No. 3 25,180.00$         1,100.00$                  1,045.00$                  222,301.70$                         221,256.70$                

Pay App No. 4 43,280.00$         18,100.00$                17,195.00$                172,872.93$                         155,677.93$                

Pay App No. 5 73,960.00$         30,680.00$                29,146.00$                235,524.66$                         206,378.66$                

Pay App No. 6 104,240.00$       30,280.00$                28,766.00$                268,591.41$                         239,825.41$                

Pay App No. 7 140,120.00$       35,880.00$                34,086.00$                456,095.00$                         422,009.00$                

Pay App No. 8 180,380.00$       40,260.00$                38,247.00$                162,376.37$                         124,129.37$                

Pay App No. 9 190,400.00$       10,020.00$                9,519.00$                  127,497.31$                         117,978.31$                

Pay App No. 10 194,800.00$       4,400.00$                  4,180.00$                  191,437.26$                         187,257.26$                

Pay App No. 11 208,700.00$       13,900.00$                13,205.00$                272,191.48$                         258,986.48$                

198,265.00$              TOTAL PAID by SRF 2,623,043.57$        

Note: 5% Retainage is being held until end of project.

Ineligible Cost Total

10163-19, Village of Sunrise Beach, Phase III, Item No. 13 Ineligible Costs



8/5/24









Description Contract Amt Billed Remaining Total Due

Basic Services:

Preliminary Design Phase (% Complete) 50,000$                   50,000.00$       -$                             -$                       

Final Design Phase (% Complete) 280,000$                 280,000.00$    -$                             -$                       

Bidding/Negotiation Phase (% Complete) 20,000$                   20,000.00$       -$                             -$                       

Construction Phase (% Complete) 75,000$                   71,250.00$       3,750.00$                   -$                       

Post-Construction Phase (% Complete) 25,000$                   22,500.00$       2,500.00$                   22,500.00$            

Resident Project Representative (Hourly) 208,800$                 193,689.70$    15,110.30$                 17,247.00$            

Amendment No. 1 (% Complete) 59,600$                   59,600.00$       -$                             -$                       

Additional Services (Hourly)

Design Surveying/Easement Drafting (capped) 55,000$                   55,000.00$       -$                             -$                       

Construction Staking 75,000$                   75,000.00$       -$                             -$                       

Easement Procurement (Capped) 85,000$                   85,000.00$       -$                             -$                       

Total Due 39,747.00$            

Phase Breakdown % Complete % Remaining Total Due

Construction Phase 95% 5% -$                       

Post-Construction Phase (Asbuilts) 90% 10% 22,500$                 

Amendment No. 1 100% 0% -$                       

Resident Project Rep. Prev. Invoiced (HR) HRS RATE Total Due

Jared Wheaton, PE 45  $                      110.00 4,950.00$              

Tony Cobb (Sr. Project Representative) 170 65.00$                         11,050.00$            

Mileage 2150 0.58$                           1,247.00$              

-$                         Total Phase 17,247.00$            

Total Due This Period 39,747.00$           

Please make checks payable to SSE, LLC

If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact Jared Wheaton at 573-714-0366

THANK YOU FOR CHOOSING SHORELINE SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING, LLC!

Shoreline Surveying & Engineering, LLC 

Our New Address: INVOICE 
3048 S. Bus. 54 
Eldon, MO  65026 
Phone 573-392-3312   

DATE:  August 1, 2024 
INVOICE#:   6512k 
 

 
Bill To: 
Village of Sunrise Beach 
Attn:  Clerk 
P.O. Box 348 
Sunrise Beach, MO  65079 
 

FOR: 
PHASE III – SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
 

TERMS:  Payable on Receipt; 









Item No. Description- WATER Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount of Bid
1 6” Gate Valve- Complete-in-place 1 EA 2,000.00$      2,000.00$           
2 6" SDR-21 Force Main 80 LF 26.00$            2,080.00$           

3
6" Force Main Bore, Restraint Joint Pipe w/10" PVC Casing, Spacers 
and end caps 60 LF 225.00$          13,500.00$        

4 6" Restaint Joint Pipe, w/Open Cut Casing 10" PVC Casing 40 LF 80.00$            3,200.00$           
5 6" Fire Hydrants w/Valve 1 EA 4,800.00$      4,800.00$           

25,580.00$     

Total Both Services 25,580.00$     

TOTAL NUMERICAL COST ESTIMATE FOR WATER

Note: This estimate will install water to the property line of Rough Water Docks.. 1- MoDOT Road bore permit 
will need to be completed. 4- Easements will need to be completed.

Rough Water Docks,      Hwy 
5 Bore

 Cost Estimate

8/2/2024
Cost Estimate for         

Water Improvements
L                               C.O. #3, 



   
 
 
 

 

Architecture      Civil Engineering      Land Surveying      Site Development      Geotechnical Engineering      Inspection & Materials Testing 

 

 
8 East Main Street                     737 Rudder Road           530A East Independence Drive                  1163 Maple Street                    2804 N. Biagio Street                 905 Executive Drive 
Wentzville, MO 63385             Fenton, MO 63026                    Union, MO 63084                           Farmington, MO 63640                    Ozark, MO 65721               Osage Beach, MO 65065 
Phone: 636-332-4574           Phone: 314-842-4033              Phone: 636-584-0540                          Phone: 573-315-4810                 Phone: 417-595-4108                 Phone: 573-525-0299 
Fax: 636-327-0760                   Fax: 314-842-5957                Fax: 636-584-0512                                Fax: 573-315-4811                       Fax: 417-595-4109                         Fax: 573-525-0298 

www.cochraneng.com 

 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
(CASTLE GARDEN RD. AND CUL-DE-SAC) 

 
DATE: August 7, 2024  
 
OWNER: City of Sunrise Beach 
 16537 MO-5 
 Sunrise Beach, MO 65079  
  
CONTRACTOR: Higgins Asphalt Paving Co., Inc.  
 35086 Higgins Road 
 Tipton, MO 65081  
 
ENGINEER: Cochran 
 905 Executive Drive 
 Osage Beach, MO 65065  
  
SUBJECT: Change Order No. 1 
 2024 Asphalt Overlay Program 
 Project No. SC24-1581  
  
ITEM: 
Change Order No. 1 includes the remainder of Castle Garden Rd. Scope of work consists of partial depth pavement repair, pavement 
overlay including the cul-de-sac, and striping. Itemized changes are listed below. 

1. Item No. 6 – Asphalt Pavement (BP-1) (Surface Course) (2” or 2 1/2”): Add an additional 800 tons of asphalt pavement at 
unit price of $113.50/ton for a total addition to the contract of $90,800.00. 
 

2. Item No. 7 – Partial Depth Pavement Repair (Milling and Asphalt Patch) (Allowance): Add up to an additional 667 square 
yards at unit price of $30.00/square yard for a total addition to the contract of $20,010.00. 
 

3. Item No. 8 – Pavement Marking – Lane Lines 4” – Yellow and White (High Build Waterborne): Add an additional 5,100 
linear feet of white edge line pavement striping at unit price of $0.63/linear foot for a total addition of $3,213.00. 

 

Original Contract Amount:     $ 521,023.35 
Net Addition to Contract:     $ 114,023.00    
New Contract Amount:                   $ 635,046.35 

 
City of Sunrise Beach   Higgins Asphalt Paving Co., LLC   Cochran  
OWNER (Firm Name) CONTRACTOR (Firm Name) ENGINEER (Firm Name) 
 
16537 MO-5  35086 Higgins Road  905 Executive Drive    
ADDRESS (Line 1)  ADDRESS (Line 1)  ADDRESS (Line 1) 
 
Sunrise Beach, MO 65079  Tipton, MO 65081  Osage Beach, MO  65065   
ADDRESS (Line 2)  ADDRESS (Line 2)  ADDRESS (Line 2) 
 
      
BY (Signature)  BY (Signature)  BY (Signature) 
 
    Erik A. Howell, P.E.   
(Typed Name)  (Typed Name)  (Typed Name) 

      
DATE  DATE  DATE 
 

END CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 



   
 
 
 

 

Architecture      Civil Engineering      Land Surveying      Site Development      Geotechnical Engineering      Inspection & Materials Testing 

 

 
8 East Main Street                     737 Rudder Road           530A East Independence Drive                  1163 Maple Street                    2804 N. Biagio Street                 905 Executive Drive 
Wentzville, MO 63385             Fenton, MO 63026                    Union, MO 63084                           Farmington, MO 63640                    Ozark, MO 65721               Osage Beach, MO 65065 
Phone: 636-332-4574           Phone: 314-842-4033              Phone: 636-584-0540                          Phone: 573-315-4810                 Phone: 417-595-4108                 Phone: 573-525-0299 
Fax: 636-327-0760                   Fax: 314-842-5957                Fax: 636-584-0512                                Fax: 573-315-4811                       Fax: 417-595-4109                         Fax: 573-525-0298 

www.cochraneng.com 

 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 
(SINGING OAKS RD. FROM HWY 5 TO CASTLE GARDEN RD.) 

 
DATE: August 7, 2024  
 
OWNER: City of Sunrise Beach 
 16537 MO-5 
 Sunrise Beach, MO 65079  
  
CONTRACTOR: Higgins Asphalt Paving Co., Inc.  
 35086 Higgins Road 
 Tipton, MO 65081  
 
ENGINEER: Cochran 
 905 Executive Drive 
 Osage Beach, MO 65065  
  
SUBJECT: Change Order No. 2 
 2024 Asphalt Overlay Program 
 Project No. SC24-1581  
ITEM: 
Change Order No. 2 includes Singing Oaks Rd. from Highway 5 to Castle Gardens Rd. Scope of work consists of partial depth 
pavement repair, pavement overlay, and striping. Itemized changes are listed below. 

1. Item No. 6 – Asphalt Pavement (BP-1) (Surface Course) (2” or 2 1/2”): Add an additional 361 tons of asphalt pavement at 
unit price of $113.50/ton for a total addition to the contract of $40,973.50. 
 

2. Item No. 7 – Partial Depth Pavement Repair (Milling and Asphalt Patch) (Allowance): Add an additional 53 square yards 
at unit price of $30.00/square yard for a total addition to the contract of $1,590.00. 
 

3. Item No. 8 – Pavement Marking – Lane Lines 4” – Yellow and White (High Build Waterborne): Add an additional 2,100 
linear feet of white edge line pavement striping at unit price of $0.63/linear foot for a total addition of $1,323.00. 

 

Original Contract Amount:     $ 521,023.35 
Contract Amount Prior to Change Order No. 2   $ 635,046.35 
Net Addition to Contract:     $   43,886.50    
New Contract Amount:                   $ 678,932.85 

 
City of Sunrise Beach   Higgins Asphalt Paving Co., LLC   Cochran  
OWNER (Firm Name) CONTRACTOR (Firm Name) ENGINEER (Firm Name) 
 
16537 MO-5  35086 Higgins Road  905 Executive Drive    
ADDRESS (Line 1)  ADDRESS (Line 1)  ADDRESS (Line 1) 
 
Sunrise Beach, MO 65079  Tipton, MO 65081  Osage Beach, MO  65065   
ADDRESS (Line 2)  ADDRESS (Line 2)  ADDRESS (Line 2) 
 
      
BY (Signature)  BY (Signature)  BY (Signature) 
 
    Erik A. Howell, P.E.   
(Typed Name)  (Typed Name)  (Typed Name) 

      
DATE  DATE  DATE 
 

END CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 


	Bill 2024-18 Fair Housing
	Res 16 CDBG application 1 Beachwood
	Res 17 CDBG application 2 Eddie Am Legion
	Res 18 Conflict of Interest
	Conflict of Interest Policy CDBG 24
	Res 19 Excessive Force
	Res 20 Cochran Beachwood
	Proposal - Sunrise Beach - Beachwood CDBG 2023 - 7-17-24
	Res 21 Cochran Eddie Am Legion
	Proposal - Sunrise Beach - CDBG 2024 - 7-17-24
	Res 22 Annexation Agreement Rough Water dock
	IRREVOCABLE CONSENT TO ANNEXATION Rough Water Docks
	1. The Village hereby agrees to extend public water and sanitary sewer service to the Landowner property in a reasonable timeframe not to exceed ninety (90) days following execution of this agreement by the Village. The Village shall waive any connect...
	2. If requested by the Village Clerk, Landowner shall, within such time as specified by the Village Clerk, submit a verified petition requesting annexation of Landowner' property to the Village Clerk for presentation to the Village Board of Trustees. ...
	3. Landowner further agrees that it shall not consent to voluntary annexation by any other municipality without the consent of the Village.
	4. Landowner shall give a copy of this agreement to each person who buys all or a portion of Landowner' property.
	5. If Landowner fails to comply with any of the provisions of this agreement or repudiates the terms of this agreement, the Village may terminate water and sewer service to Landowner's property and disconnect the sewer lines serving Landowner' propert...
	6. This agreement is not intended to confer any rights or remedies on any person other than the parties.
	7. The benefits and burdens of this agreement are intended to attach to and run with the land and shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs and assigns. All persons claimi...
	8. This agreement shall be recorded in the office of the Camden County Recorder of Deeds at the Village's expense.

	Bill 2024-17 Right-of-way maintenance FINAL
	SECTION One: Duty Of Property Owner To Maintain Right of Way.
	SECTION Two: Culvert and Ditch Maintenance; Obstruction Removal By The Village; Costs.

	Pay App 11 & CO 4 (village to sign) 080524
	Summer Point and COMO, Pay App No. 2, Signed by Brulez
	Change Order #3, Contract 1, Water Extension, Rough Water, 08022024, Signed by Brulez (1)
	Cost Est for Water Rough Water Docks, Est 08022024 (2)
	Turn into DNR

	Draft agenda 8-12-24.pdf
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
	AGENDA


	C.O. #4, SBSD, Phase 3, Spread Sheet 08022024.pdf
	Contract 1, C.O. #1

	Line Item No. 40 Completed totals COMO (1).pdf
	Sheet1

	Line Item No. 41 Est for Rough Water Docks Bore (1).pdf
	Turn into DNR




